Durham Police Department
86 Dover Road
Durham, New Hampshire 03824

MEMORANDUM

September 25, 2013

To: Michael Behrendt, Town Planner
From: Dave Kurz, Chief of Police
Re: Orion Student Housing — Main Street

| reviewed the proposed plan for the renovation of several existing buildings and
construction of several new apartment complexes at 25-35 Main Street and have
the following comments:

e While the parking lot will undoubtedly provide delivery and temporary parking for
tenants and deliver persons, all parking should be clearly defined with no parking
that would hinder emergency vehicles. The location of the complex is extremely
convenient for walking and/or bicycling to downtown and the UNH campus
therefore lessening the need for on-site tenant parking. There is significant traffic
on Main Street at this location which poses a perplexing challenge as to a
preferred pattern of egress for the complex. | would recommend that a traffic
engineer, hired by the applicant, provide the Town with a viable traffic pattern for
the complex considering the Main Street patterns and volumes.

¢ Lighting should be ample for public safety yet not invasive to the surrounding area.

e It is imperative that the applicant understand that there is no overnight parking for
any potential apartment renters on any adjacent streets or property owned and/or
controlled by the Town of Durham. While the Town will not provide parking
permits for residential apartment dwellers, there is the opportunity to purchase
annual business permits for those associated with the commercial enterprises
located in the area. This will enable employees to park at several satellite
locations reserving the closest parking for customers.

e Any construction and/or delivery that will result in the closure and/or blockage of
the traffic lanes on Main Street must be approved with ample notice to the
Durham Police Department who will be the sole determination as the traffic control
required.



e The Durham Police will not allow any construction/delivery that would cause any
lane closure during the period of the last week in August through Labor Day
weekend that would coincide with UNH “move-in”.

e The Durham Police would suggest that all apartment numbers be prominently
displayed and developed so that police personnel can easily and quickly
locate units, i.e. 2A for unit A on the 2" floor and 3C for unit C on the 3™
floor. Any such configuration clearly delineating floors is imperative.

¢ Video monitoring in any interior common stairwells or hallways or exterior
walkways would be helpful for theft prevention, resident safety as well as
enhancing the police department’s ability to resolve criminal acts.

e Hardware should feature window locks, dead bolts for doors, interior door
hinges and well lit interior corridors. All common building entrances should
have locks that automatically catch when the door closes.

On-site management — Police Services

The Durham Police and University Edge have several years of history
coordinating our mutual efforts for the betterment of the community. While the
issue surrounding on-site versus no on-site management of student rentals is not
simplistic, the Durham Police experience has demonstrated very positive
attributes of a well-managed property when the owners/managers remain with
the property and are engaged with the community! The Durham Police have
long maintained that management must equate to more than simply retrieving the
rental checks at the end of each month. It is critical that they be involved with the
building complex, community and desirous of being responsive to the
surrounding neighborhood. The management company that is invested, literally
and figuratively into the Durham community, is the most critical component for a
well-managed and mutually successful property from a police perspective.

| used the verbiage “mutually successful” in that Orion/University Edge desires to
experience a positive profit stream while the Durham community enjoys a solid
tax base with minimal dependency upon limited Town and School District
resources. However, it is my opinion and aspiration that a complex of this
nature, located in the appropriate location, as this complex is, would assist in
providing student housing away from the historically residential neighborhoods
where the lifestyles of students and residents most often collide. When this
collision occurs, there is increased demand for police presence and demand for
stern action by the police. Hence, | enthusiastically endorse the concept of a
well-designed and situated student housing complex in appropriate locations.
That said, it would be an error to believe that the addition of a complex of this
size and composition, even when professionally managed, will have no impact
upon policing services in Durham. It should be noted that in addition to calls for
service, the Durham Police has developed and implemented a program in



partnership with the Durham Landlord Association that notifies landlords via
email after each incident that police are required to respond to their property.
Each quarter, every landlord receives a correlated analysis of ALL calls to any
rental property in Durham for that three-month period. This allows the landlord to
compare activity, or non-activity of their property to other during the same
timeframe. As successful and proactive as this program is, it still involves a
department employee to complete the reports, correlate the data and send
notifications to the landlords.

The Durham Police support the construction of well managed student apartment
dwellings. In addition, this is an appropriate location due to the proximity of other
student dwellings, distance away from residential neighborhoods with fewer
residents to disturb and in an area of the downtown where late night activity is
prevalent. As | have maintained, the Durham Police continually strive to meet
the demands of its citizens while remaining fiscally responsible. It is our belief
that a sound and well structured and conceived planning process in these
matters can not be understated. The end result of this process equates to
diminished demands for governmental monitoring by police, fire and code
enforcement.



